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Dear Ms. White:

The Commission on Ethics and Public Trust
considered your request for an advisory
opinion at its meeting on October 26, 2009
and rendered its opinion based on the facts
stated in your letter.

You requested an opinion regarding whether
the department must maintain hard copies of
financial disclosure forms.

In your request, you advised the Commission
that Section 2-11.1(i) requires the following
persons to file financial disclosure: a) the
Mayor and the Members of the Board of County
Commissioners; b) County Attorney and
Assistant County Attorneys; c) County
Manager, Assistant County Manager and Special
Assistants to the County Manager; d} Heads or
Directors of County Departments and their
agsgistant or deputy department heads; e)
Employees of Miami-Dade County police with
the rank of Captain, Major and Chief; f)
building and zoning inspectors; g) any
architect, professional engineer, landscape
architect or registered land surveyor
performing services for Miami-Dade County
pursuant to a contract; h}) autonomous and
semi-autonomous personnel, boards and




agencies that did not file under state law;
i) personnel who perform quasi-judicial
functions and who did not file under state
law; j) advisory personnel whose sole or
primary responsibility is to recommend
legislation or give advice to the Board of
County Commissioners, including members of
any County board that did not file under
state law and k) candidates for County and
municipal elected office.

§112.3145, F.S. {(2008) sets out the persons
required to file financial disclosure under
state law. Section 112.3145 includes several
persons, such as the Mayor, members of the
Board of County Commissioners, police
officials, building officials and candidates
who are required to file under state law and
the Conflict of Interest ordinance. The
Supervisor of Elections is the custodian of
records for financial disclosure forms under
the county ordinance and state law.

State elections law requires the Supervisor
of Elections to maintain originals of
financial disclosure records for ten years.
Pursuant to that section, the Florida Ethics
Commission and all Florida counties,
including Miami-Dade County, maintain hard
copies of financial disclosure forms.

The Elections Department uses electronic data
management systems (EDMS)} to scan hard copies
of various documents into an electronic
storage system. The Department of Elections
currently maintains hard copies as well as
electronic masters for financial disclosure
and other documents (i.e. outside employment)
maintained by the department. The Electionsg
Department is considering phasing ocut their
current system and maintaining the master
copy only in electronic form.

The Ethics Commission found the Elections
Department should maintain hard copies of
financial disclosure documents for ten years.
State law mandates that “the supervisor shall




preserve statements and other information
required to be filed with the supervisor..for
a period of ten years from date of receipt”.
Since many officials are required to file
under both laws and many county officials
file the state form, it would be unmanageable
to maintain two separate record retention
systems for the same records. Therefore, the
Elections Department should maintain records
filed under Section 2-11.1(i) for ten years
as they maintain forms filed under state law.

This opinion construes the Miami-Dade
Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics
ordinance only and is not applicable to any
conflict under state law. Please contact the
State of Florida Commission on Ethics if you
have any guestions regarding possible
conflicts under state law.

I1f you have any questions regarding this
opinion, please call Ardyth Walker, Staff
General Counsel at (305) 350-0616 or the
undersigned at (305) 579-2594.

Sincerely Yours,

ROBERT MEYERS
Executive Director




